o

City Council
Assessment Subcommittee

Meeting Agenda
5:30 PM - 6:30 PM
Tuesday, October 5th, 2010



N

Assessment Subcommittee

Agenda

* Review/Approval of Minutes

* Proposed Draft Assessment
Policy

* Proposed Timeline/Next Steps
 Other Items/Next Meeting

~» Adjourn



City Council
Assessment Subcommittee

Meeting Agenda
5:30 PM - 6:30 PM
Tuesday, October 5th, 2010



Assessment Subcommittee

Agenda

* Review/Approval of Minutes

. Proposed Draft Assessment
Policy

* Proposed Timeline/Next Steps
"« Other Items/Next Meeting

* Adjourn



THE CITY OF o

i

City Council
Assessment Subcommittee

Meeting Agenda
5:30 PM - 6:30 PM
Tuesday, October 5th, 2010



Assessment Subcommittee

Agenda

. Review/Approval of Minutes

* Proposed Draft Assessment
Policy

* Proposed Timeline/Next Steps
» Other Items/Next Meeting

* Adjourn



.

City Council
Assessment Subcommittee

Meeting Agenda
5:30 PM - 6:30 PM
Tuesday, October 5th, 2010



Assessment Subcommittee
Agenda

« Review/Approval of Minutes

 Proposed Draft Assessment
* Policy

* Proposed Timeline/Next Steps
- Other Items/Next Meeting

. Adjourn



TH,E MTY QF

1 : i o " i i .
.. E —— i i i b
% 1EP o N ¥
| H : e _'
i g
s Fe 1 R
-

City Council
Assessment Subcommittee

Meeting Agenda
5:30 PM - 6:30 PM
Tuesday, October 5th, 2010



Assessment Subcommittee
Agenda

« Review/Approval of Minutes

~* Proposed Draft Assessment
- Policy

* Proposed Timeline/Next Steps
* Other Iltems/Next Meeting

» Adjourn



TKDA

ENGINEERS = ARCHITECTS = PLANNERS 444 Gedar Street, Sulte 1500
Saint Paul, MK 55101-2140
CITY OF LAKE ELMQO (651) 292-4420
ASSESSMENT POLICY (651) 202-0083 Fax
October 2010 www.tkda.com

L

IL

We want to develop a clear, fair and equitable, and defensible Assessment Policy. Assessment
Policies are highly regulated and are becoming more and more Jitigated.

A. Statutory Rules to keep in mind: _
- 1. The assessments must be uniform in relation to the other properties (fair and equitable).

2. Onthe high end — The amount of the assessment is limited — it cannot exceed the increase
in fair market value of the property (special benefit). And the assessment amount cannot
exceed the cost of providing the improvement.

3. On the low end — The total amount of the project to be assessed must exceed 20% of the
total project costs, in order to purchase bonds to fund the improvements.

B. Goals for an assessment policy

1. Toremain fair and equitable for the benefit received.

2. To be defensible, able to hold up against appeal.

3. To balance the assessable costs to the benefitting properties with the city costs for the
better good of the community.

4. To promote public support for the city to install improvements deemed desirable for the
betterment of the community.

5. Tobe comprehensive and flexible, able to be fairly applied to differing circumstances.

6. To deter the undesirable subdivision of land for the purpose of paying assessments.

DRAFT Special Assessment Policy
A.  Section II - simply a general information piece. Types of Improvemments (covered by Statute).
B. Section III - simply a general information piece. Initiation — petition notice.
C. Section IV — Public Improvement Process — informative.
D. Section V - Policies :
1. (A) Sets the expectations for Developer’s to pay full infrastructure costs.

(B) Putpose of Assessments is typically for rehabilitation and replacement.
(C) — (H) standard policies

2
3,
4. () applies outside grants, MSA funds, ete. to City cost share.
5. (I)— (M) standard policies
6. (N) Green Acres deferment
7. (O) Hardship (Senior Citizen or disability) deferment
E.  Section VI —Methods of Assessments
1. Fixe Cost “Unit” Method
2. Adjusted Front Footage
3. Area

Section VII - Reassessment, sets infrastructure life expectancies and prorates assessment.
Section VIII — Determination of Assessable Costs
1. Street Improvements

a. New Streets = 100% (paid by developer). Upgrading gravel roadway addressed.

&

An Emplayae Owned Company Promoting Affirmative Action and Fqual Dpportunity



CITY OF LAKE ELMO Page 2
ASSESSMENT POLICY

b, Local Street = 30% for residential city design standard. Council/staff needs to decide
the “Improvement” after listening to property owners. = 100% to Commercial,
Industrial and Institutional properties,

¢. Oversize costs for Collector/Arterial streets paid by city, MSA, efc. Oversize costs
requested by property owners AND approved by Council = 100% assessed.

d. Section VIIL, A. 3. — Residential properties with access to collector streets — steps
include defining number of units, taking out oversize costs, and finding eq. unit.

Specific staff recommendations for street improvements.

1. Maintain the policy to assess at least 30% of the total project costs for street
reconstruction and rehabilitation (reclaim) improvements. If you adjust this percentage,
staff recommends only slight adjustments upward, say 35% or 40%. Adjust the assessable
portion for the 2011 project and maintain that level going forward.

2. Establish an assessment policy for the improvement of gravel roadways. Create an
assessment methodology for the paving of gravel residential roadways (percentage
assessable cost), typically requiring new storm sewer systems (handled separately?). And
remove residential gravel roadways from the street capital improvement schedule;
instead notifying residents that improvements will be considered only by petition.

3. Oversizing costs, in excess of residential requirements, shall be city costs. City Council
determines the “Improvement” to be made. _

4. Properties along rural collector roadways will be assessed on the basis of an equivalent
residential assessment. Case by case? Use traffic counts? 3-yr avg.? St annual foe?

5. Extend the assessment payback period to 20 years for street improvements, making
higher cost street reconstruction projects more affordable to property owners.

6.  Develop a funding/assessment practice for Water Quality Improvements (Rain Gardens).

2. Sidewalks, Trails, Bikeways
a. Need to remain very flexible for council discretion.

b. New infrastructure = 100% assessed, Replacement = 30% residential, 100% other.

3, Street Boulevard Trees
a. Assessed together with street project.

4.  Street Light Improvements
a. Requires 60% property owner petition {from existing LE policy}.

b. Assessed = 7?%, or assessed together with street project.

5. Transportation Improvements
a. Assessed 100% to commercial, industrial and institutional zoned areas.

6. Storm Sewer and Drainage Facility Improvements
a. NEW infrastructure = 100% assessed. Policy to capture additional contributing

properties.
b. Replacement infrastructure = 30% assessed to residential only?

7. Sanitary Sewer Improvements
a. NEW infrastructure = 100% assessed. Unit method using SAC unit definitions.

b. Sewer Enterprise Fund pays oversize costs and trunk infrastructure.
¢. Policy to capture direct connections to trunk mains — lateral benefit charge.

8. Watermain Improvements

a. NEW infrastructure = 100% assessed. Unit method using SAC unit definitions.
b. Sewer Enterprise Fund pays oversize costs and trunk infrastructure.
c. Policy to capture direct cormections to trunk mains — lateral benefit charge.

N



TKDA

L T T R
ENGINEERS = ARCHITECTS = PLANNERS 444 Cedar Street, Suts 1500
Saint Paul, MN 551012140
CITY OF LAKE ELMO (651) 202-4400
ASSESSMENT POLICY (651) 29i"°“83 Fax
October 2010 - v toasom

L

We want to develop a clear, fair and equitable, and defensible Assessment Policy. Assessment
Policies are highty regulated and are becoming more and more litigated.

A. Statutory Rules to keep in mind:

1. The assessments must be uniform in relation to the other properties (fair and equitable).

2. On the high end - The amount of the assessment is limited — it cannot exceed the increase
in fair market value of the property (special benefit). And the assessment amount cannot
exceed the cost of providing the improvement.

3. On the low end — The total amount of the project to be assessed must exceed 20% of the
total project costs, in order to purchase bonds to fund the improvements.

B. Goals for an assessment policy

I.  To remain fair and equitable for the benefit received.

2. To be defensible, able to hold up against appeal.

3. To balance the assessable costs to the benefitting properties with the city costs for the
better good of the community.

4. To promote public support for the city to install improvements deemed desirable for the
betterment of the community.

5. To be comprehensive and flexible, able to be fairly applied to differing circumstances,

6. To deter the undesirable subdivision of land for the purpose of paying assessments,

I. DRATT Special Assessment Policy

A.  Section IT - simply a general information picce. Types of Iimprovements (covered by Statute).
B.  Section Il — simply a general information piece. Initiation — petition notice,
C. Section IV — Public Improvement Process — informative.
D. Section V - Policies :
1. (A) Sets the expectations for Developer’s to pay full infrastructure costs.
2. (B) Purpose of Assessments is typically for rehabilitation and replacement.
3. (C)- (H) standard policies
4. (1) applies outside grants, MSA funds, etc. to City cost share.
5. (J) (M) standard policies
6. (N) Green Acres deferment
7. (O) Hardship (Senior Citizen or disability) deferment
E.  Section VI Methods of Assessments
1. Fixe Cost “Unit” Method
2. Adjusted Front Footage
3. Area
Section VII - Reassessment, sets infrastructure life expectancies and prorates assessment,
Section VIII - Determination of Assessable Costs
[.  Street Improvements
a. New Streets = 100% (paid by developer). Upgrading gravel roadway addressed.

o

Ap Employes Dwned Company Premoting Affirmative Aciion and Foual Opnartunity



CITY OF LAKE ELMO : Page 2
ASSESSMENT POLICY

b. Local Street = 30% for residential city design standard. Council/staff needs to decide
the “Improvement” after listening to property owners. = 100% to Commercial,
Industrial and Institutional properties.

¢. Oversize costs for Collector/Arterial streets paid by city, MSA, etc. Oversize costs
requested by property owners AND approved by Council = 100% assessed.

d. Section VIII, A. 3. -- Residential properties with access to collector streets — steps
include defining number of units, taking out oversize costs, and finding eq. unit.

Specific staff recommendations for street improvements,

1

Maintain the policy to assess at least 30% of the total project costs for street
reconstruction and rehabilitation (reclaim) improvements. If you adjust this perceniage,
staff recommends only slight adjustments upward, say 35% or 40%. Adjust the assessabie
portion for the 2011 project and maintain that level going forward.

Establish an assessment policy for the improvement of gravel roadways. Create an
assessment methodology for the paving of gravel residential roadways (percentage
assessable cost), typically requiring new storm sewer systems (handled separately?). And
remove residential gravel roadways from the street capital improvement schedule;
instead notifying residents that improvements will be considered only by petition.
Oversizing costs, in excess of residential requirements, shall be city costs. City Council
determines the “Improvement” to be made.

Properties along rural collector roadways will be assessed on the basis of an eguivalent
residential ussessment, Case by case? Use traffic counts? 3-yr avg.? Set annual fec?
Extend the assessment payback period to 20 years for street improvements, making
higher cost street reconstruction projects more affordable to property owners.

Develop a funding/assessment practice for Water Quality Improvements (Rain Gardens).

Sidewalks, Trails, Bikeways

a. Need o remain very flexible for council discretion.

b. New infrastructure = 100% assessed, Replacement = 30% residential, 100% other.

Street Boulevard Trees

a. Assessed together with street project.

Street Light Improvements

a. Requires 60% property owner petition (from existing LE policy).

b. Assessed = ??%, or assessed together with street project.

Transportation Improvements

a. Assessed 100% to commercial, industrial and institutional zoned areas.

Storm Sewer and Drainage Facility Improvements

a. NEW infrastruciure = 100% assessed. Policy to capture additional contributing
properiies.

b. Replacement infrastructure = 30% assessed to residential oniy?

Sanitary Sewer Improvements :

a. NEW infrastructure = 100% assessed. Unit method using SAC unit definitions.

b. Sewer Enterprise Fund pays oversize costs and trunk infrastruciure.

c. Policy to capture direct commections to trunk mains — lateral benefit charge.

Watermain Improvements

a. NEW infrastructure = 100% assessed. Unit method using SAC unit definitions.

b. Sewer Enterprise Fund pays oversize costs and trunk infrastructure,

c. Policy to capture direct connections to trunk mains - lateral benefit charge.



TKDA

ENGINEERS = ARCHITEGTS = PLANNERS 444 Gadar Straet, Suite 1500
Saint Paul, MK 55101-2140
CITY OF LAKE ELMO ' (651) 232-4400
ASSESSMENT POLICY ' (651) 282-0083 Fex
October 2010 www. tkda.com

L We want to develop a clear, fair and equitable, and defensible Assessment Policy. Assessment
Policies are highly regulated and are becoming more and more litigated.

A. Statutory Rules to keep in mind:

1. The assessments must be uniform in relation io the other properties (fair and equitable).

2, On the high end -- The amount of the assessment is limited — it cannot exceed the increase
in fair market value of the property (special benefit). And the assessment amount cannot
exceed the cost of providing the improvement.

3. On the low end — The total amount of the project to be assessed must excesd 20% of the
total project costs, in order to purchase bonds to fund the improvements.

B. Goals for an assessment policy

1. Toremain fair and equitable for the benefit received.

2. To be defensible, able to hold up against appeal.

3. To balance the assessable costs io the benefitting properties with the city costs for the
better good of the community,

4. To promote public support for the city to install improvements deemed desirable for the
betterment of the community.

5. To be comprehensive and flexible, able to be fairly applied to differing circumstances,

6. To deter the undesirable subdivision of land for the purpose of paying assessients.

II.  DRAFT Special Assessment Policy
A, Section IT - simply a general information piece. Types of Improvements (covered by Statute).
B.  Section I — simply a general information piece. Initiation - petition notice.
C.  Section IV — Public Improvement Process — informative.
D. Section V - Policies
1. (A) Sets the expectations for Developer’s to pay full infrastructure costs.
2. (B) Purpose of Assessments is typicaliy for rehabilitation and replacement,
3. (C)- (H) standard policies
4. (I) applies outside grants, MSA funds, efc. to City cost share.
5. (J)— (M) standard policies
6. (N) Green Acres deferment
7. (O) Hardship (Senior Citizen or disability) deferment
E. Section VI—-Methods of Assessments
1. Fixe Cost “Unit” Method
2. Adjusted Front Footage
3. Area
Section VII - Reassessment, sets infrastructure life expectancies and prorates assessment.
Section VI — Determination of Assessable Costs
1. Street Improvements
a. New Streets = 100% (paid by developer). Upgrading gravel roadway addressed.

Q

An Employse Owned Company Promoting Affirmative Action and Equal Oppartunily



CITY OF LAKE ELMO Page 2
ASSESSMENT POLICY :

b. Local Sireet = 30% for residential city design standard. Council/staff needs to decide
the “Improvement™ after listening to property owners. = 100% to Commercial,
Industrial and Institutional properties.

c. Oversize costs for Collector/Arterial streets paid by city, MSA, etc. Oversize costs
requested by property owners AND approved by Council = 100% assessed.

d. Section VIII, A. 3. -- Residential properties with access to collector streets — steps
include defining number of units, taking out oversize costs, and finding eq. unit.

Specific staff recommendations for street improvements.

1L

Maintain the policy to assess at least 30% of the iotal project costs for sireel
reconstruction and rehabilitation (veclaim) improvements. If you adjust this percentage,
staff recommends only slight adjustments upward, say 35% or 40%. Adjust the assessable
portion for the 2011 project and maintain that level going forward.

Establish an assessment policy for the improvement of gravel roadways. Create an
assessment methodology for the paving of gravel residential roadways (percentage
assessable cost), typically requiring new stormn sewer systems (handled separately?). And
remove residential gravel roadways from the sireet capital improvement schedule;
instead notifying residents that improvements will be considered only by petition.
Oversizing costs, in excess of residential requirements, shall be city costs. City Council
determines the “Improvement” to be made. _

Properties along rural collector roadways will be assessed on the basis of an equivalent
residential assessment. Case by case? Use traffic counts? 3-yr avg.? Set annuol fee?
Extend the assessment payback period to 20 years for street improvements, making
higher cost street reconstruction projects more affordable to property owners.

Develop a funding/assessment practice for Water Quality Improvements (Rain Gardens).

Sidewalks, Trails, Bikeways

a. Need to remain very flexible for council discretion.

b. New infrastructure = 100% assessed, Replacement = 30% residential, 100% other.

Street Boulevard Trees '

a. Assessed together with street project.

street Light Improvements

a. Requires 60% property owner petition (from existing LE policy).

b. Assessed = T?%, or assessed together with street project.

Transportation Improvements

a. Assessed 100% to commercial, industrial and institutional zoned areas.

Storm Sewer and Drainage Facility Improvements

a. NEW infrastructure = 100% assessed. Policy to capture additional contributing
properties.

b. Replacement infrastructure = 30% assessed io residential only?

Sanitary Sewer Improvements

a. NEW infrastructure = 100% assessed. Unit method using SAC unit definitions.

b. Sewer Enterprise Fund pays oversize costs and trunk infrastructure.

¢. Policy to capture direct connections to trunk mains — lateral benefit charge.

Watermain Inprovements

a. NEW infrastructure = 100% assessed. Unit method using SAC unit definitions.

b. Sewer Enterprise Fund pays oversize costs and trunk infrastructure.

c. Policy to capture direct connections to trunk mains — lateral benefit charge.



CITY OF LAKE ELMO
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT POLICIES
AND PROCEDURES
FOR

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

Adopted by Resolution No. on: November XX, 2010



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION I: GENERAL POLICY STATEMENT ...ttt evee s 3
SECTION IIl: DEFINITION OF IMPROVEMENTS ELIGIBLE FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENT .. 5
SECTION lil:  INITIATION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS.......cocevveerreereree s 7
SECTION IV: PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROCEDURES.. SOOI 8

SECTION V: GENERAL ASSESSMENT POLICIES ... i i i aes e sae s 10
SECTION VI: METHODS OF ASSESSMENT ...ttt i ettt beses e 14
SECTION VIi: POLICIES OF REASSESSMENT ........cveeveeve e veree s i et sasvs seseses e 17
SECTION VIil: DETERMINATION OF ASSESSABLE COSTS e 18



SECTION .
GENERAL POLICY STATEMENT

A special assessment is a levy on a property to defray the cost of public improvements. Chapter
429 of the Minnesota Statutes grants cities the authority to use special assessments as a
mechanism to finance a broad range of public improvements. The primary purpose of special
assessments is to have the properties that benefit from the pubilc improvements pay as much of

the cost of the improvements as reasonable, thereby . red "|ng a city’s reliance on general
property taxes. However, Chapter 429 of the Mlnnesota"_:Stat es_hmlts the amount that may be

assessed to the increase in the market value of

operty bemg assessed as a result of the

public improvement.

Speciat Assessments nﬁﬁ'sgg.meet the following crite

,,_l_.gi‘_f:_it""f:;om the improvement.

A. Theland musthave received speci

B. The amount of the assessmen‘t f ust not exceed the special benefit. -

C. The assessment must be umform in relation to the same class of property within the
assessment area

It is important o _recognizé that the actual cost of extending an improvement past a particular
parcel is not the determining factor in determining the amount to be assessed. However, in most
cases the method for determining the value of the benefit received by the improvement, and
therefore the amount to be assessed, shall be the cost of providing the improvement, as long as
the cost does not exceed the increase in the market value of the property being assessed. The
entire project shall be considered as a whole for the purpose of calculating and computing an
assessment rate. In the event City staif has doubt as to whether or not the costs of the project



may exceed the special benefits to the property, the City Council may obtain such appraisals as
may be necessary to support the proposed assessment.

The City must recover the expense of installing public improvements undertaken, while ensuring
that each parcel pays its fair share of the project cost in accordance with these assessment
guidelines. While there is no perfect assessment policy, it is important that assessments be
implemented in a reasonable, consistent and fair manner There may be exceptions to the

policy or unique circumstances or situations that may irequire special consideration and

discretion by City staff and the City Council.



SECTION Il
DEFINITION OF IMPROVEMENTS ELIGIBLE
FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENT

This policy shall be applicable to those types of public improvements that are allowable under
Minnesota Statutes §429.021. Generally the improvements inciude:

A.

Petable waterworks

Street and sidewalk improvements: Acqu:m’non construction, reconstruction,
extension and major maintenance of any street and*

Jewalk and improvement of streets

and sidewalks including base and subbasé .;;pavem nt, gutters, curbs, and vehicle

parking strips, paver cross walks, p.eéieetrian cross"f":g':s,‘- medians, beautification
amenities, and street and sidewalk dr.

ge systems.

and

improveme ef eqmpment and facilities, and the

construction,rex

Street trees. Planting, trir_nrrﬁing,ricare, and removal.

Construction, reconstruction, extension, and

stems.

‘maintenance of w. ’te'r supp’l wells and pump houses, water treatment facilities, storage

tanks;: and all compo ents of the ‘watermain distribution system network and related
appurtenances

Sanitary sewer systems Acquisition, development, construction, reconstruction,
extension, and malnt_ ance of sanitary sewer conveyance and treatment systems. This
may include sanitary sewers, interceptor mains, lift stations, treatment facilities and
treatment systems, service connections, and other appurtenances of a sanitary sewer
system.

Storm sewer and drainage systems. Acquisition, development, construction,
reconstruction, extension, and maintenance of storm water management facilities and
storm sewer systems. This may inciude outlets, culverts, pipe systems, catch basins,



holding areas and ponds, infiltration basins, rain gardens, treatment plants, pumps, lift -

stations, service connections, and other appurtenances of a storm sewer system.

Nuisance abatement. Includes, but is not limited to, draining and filing swamps,
marshes, and ponds on public or private property.

Dikes and other filood control works. Construction, reconstruction, extension, and
maintenance. i

Retaining and area walls, including

noise barriers. Acquisition,

construction, reconstruction, improvement.aiferation, exten

n, and maintenance.

Malls, plazas, or courtyards. Ac tion, construction, ik vement, alteration,

extension, operation, maintenance, an s, plazas, and

courtyards,

Parking lots. Acquisition or chnslt_nructle 12



SECTION Il
INITIATION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

Public improvement projects may be initiated in the following ways:

A,

A public improvement project may be initiated by petition of at least 35% of the affected
property owners.

Public improvements may be initiated by the C.i;yf'_G}fpuncil when, in its judgment, such
action is required. A resolution ordering any Gotincil

4/5th vote, rather than a simple majority




SECTION IV.
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROCEDURES

The following is the general procedure that will be followed by the City Councit for all public
improvement projects from initiation of such a project through certification of the assessment
role to the County Auditor. The City Council reserves the right to alter the procedure on a case-
by-case basis and within the context of Minnesota Statues § Ch apter 429,

Report on the improvement

B. Council accepts or rejects the péf_if;’f!pn."if

a Feasibility Report-on.the improvement.

C.  Staff prepares a:Feasibilit
submitted by another:age

rejectsithe Feasibilitﬁt%[?i-eﬁort. If accepted, the Council orders a public

D, T
h'eﬁﬁing on the impré.ye.men

E. Staff pU‘tﬂ?_iShes a hearingf-gnotice and mails notices fo the affected property owners.

F. Council condﬁdﬁsfimprﬂ"‘ ament hearing and adopts or rejects a resolution ordering the
improvement and:'%t:he reparation of plans and specifications. Bonds to finance project
costs may be issued at any time after the improvements are ordered.

G. Staff prepares final plans for Council approval. Council approves the plans and

authorizes the advertisement of the improvements and the opening of Bids.

o



e

Staff receives bids, prepares a bid tabulation, and makes a recommendation to the City

Council for Award. Council rejects the bids or awards a contract based on the bids

received.

Performance of the work under contract is completed. Staff supervises construction,
prepares payments, and completes the improvement project.

Staff prepares an assessment roll and presents it to the :Council.

Council reviews the assessment schedule and-prders an.assessment hearing.

Staff publishes a hearing notice, mails notice of héaﬁfﬁg;da’re and the proposed

assessments to the affected property o

Council conducts assessment. hearmg, adopts TeV|ses ‘or rejects the resolutlon adopting
the assessment roll. If adopted,-Cor
County Auditor.

Staff certifies the;z&éé:eésments o the : ditor. E

*

Note: At Councn s discretion, ltem G y be carried out in advance of the

improvement hearmg

: ‘caCouncﬂ' i .-N may be carried out in advance to Councn
award and canstructmg:‘the Improvemen‘ts




SECTION V,
GENERAL ASSESSMENT POLICIES

The cost of any improvement shall be assessed upon property benefited by the improvements,

based upon the benefits received. The following general principles shall be used as a basis of

the City's assessment policy:

A,

:::and other property. The fl'

It is the general policy of the City of Lake El to '-'r'equire future development in

accordance with the Gity Comprehensive Plan.an new areas of development in an

orderly manner, typically contiguous to existing‘development areas. It is also the genera!

_f'alks water, sewer, and street

tudes the costs of all necessary construction
nt, plus engineering, legal, administrative,

_;ncmg charges include all costs of financing the project.

These- costs include, ,ut are n :r_mted to, financial consultant's fees, bond attorney's
fees, and: capitalized mterest When the project is started and funds are expended prior

o receiving® the proceeds from a bond sale, the project may be charged interest on the

funds expended'" e date of expenditure to the date the bond proceeds are

received. The interest rate charged will be the average interest rate earned by the City's
investments during the six months preceding the receipt of the bond proceeds. The
interest charged to the project shall be included as financing charges.

The "assessable cost" of an improvement is equal fo the "project cost" minus the "City

cost",

The Gity of Lake Elmo will charge interest on Special Assessments at a rate specified in
the resolution. If bonds were sold to finance the improvement project, the interest rate

10



shall be two percent (2%) more than the average interest rate of the bonds, rounded to
the nearest quarter of a percent. If no bonds were sold, the interest rate shall be set at
the rate allowed by State law.

Property owners may pay their assessments in full, interest free for a period of 30 days
after the assessment hearing. Afier such period interest shall be computed from the date
specified in the assessment resolution. The City will certify each year's collection
(principal and interest) to the County Auditor by ?:f-bevember 30th. Prior to the first
certification of principal and interest to the County:

ud'itgr a propstty owner may make a

partial pre-payment of the principal to the Clty of Lake £
must be at least $100.00. If the parﬁ?!_!
free" period allowed by State law, inte

0. Such partial prepayment

payment is made after the 30-day "interest-

st will be charged on the amount of the partial

pré-payment from the date specified in resolutlon and paid along with the partial

pre- payment After the City has ,ade the flrstht}ert cation of principal and interest to the,

including interest. If a parcel:-;"“

pre-payment of th

.'in l be pald in equa’ _-nstallments over the remaining term of the special assessments.

Wheré"én improvemen S designed for service of an area beyond that of direct benefit,

mcreased prﬁuect costs due to such provisions for future service extensions may be paid

for by the Czty The: "_'_';lty will levy assessments to cover this cost when a new

improvement is lnstalled as an extension of the existing improvement. As an alternative,
the City may assess these costs to the area of fuiure benefit immediately.

Where the project cost of an improvement is not entirely attributable to the need for
service to the area served by said improvement, or where unusual conditions beyond the
conirol of the owners of the property in the area setved by the improvement would result
in an inequitable distribution of special assessments, the City, through the use of other
funds, may pay such "City cost" which, in the opinion of the City Council, represents the
excess cost not directly attributable to the area served.

11



K.

If financial assistance is received by the City from the Federal Government, from the
State of Minnesota, the County, or from any other source to defray a portion of the costs
of a given improvement, such aid will be used first to reduce the "City cost" of the
improvement. If the financial assistance received is greater than the normal "City cost",
the remainder of the aid will be applied according to the terms of the assistance program
or at the Council’s discretion.

City-owned properties, including municipal building sites, parks and playgrounds, but not

including public streets and alieys, shall be regarde as being assessable on the same
basis as if such property was privately- owr d

Improvements specifically designed fc shown to be of directibenefit to one or more

properties may be constructed by the-ﬁ(}: y The costs for these improvements will be

assessed directly to such uded in the assessments for the

remainder of the project. Any be utility service lines running from

the main lines fo the property.

projects areidetermmed to benefit properties thai have been certified to qualify for Green
Acres exemptlon ’fhe Clty will determine that portlon of the project cost that benefits
those properties, and finance that pottion of the project cost as a system cost. During
the period of deferral, interest shall be applied annually to the unpaid principle balance at
the raie established on the original special assessment, or as adopted by resolution of
the City Council at the time the original assessment is adopted. Once the benefiting
properties no longer qualify for Green Acres status, the City may recover the system
cost either through assessments or connection charges.

12



Assessment Deferral for Hardships: The City Gouncil will consider deferment for the
payment of special assesements on any homestead property, owned by a person 65
years of age or older, or retired by virtue of permanent and total disability. A hardship
shall be deemed to exist when the annual principle instaliment of all assessments ievied
against the property exceeds iwo percent (2%) of the adjusted gross income of the
applicant as evidenced by the applicant's most recent federal income tax return, and

total assets (excluding the homestead property) do not exceed six times the adjusted
gross income.

The City Council may also determine, on “case by case basis, the existence of a

hardship on the basis of excep’nonal and -:unusuel czrcumstances not covered by these
standards and guidelines, if done in a

Jon drsonmlnatory manner :and without giving the

applicant an unreasonable preference or advantage ever other property owners

During the period of deferra _' ot
balance at the rate established: en the englnal specral assessment or as adopted by

resolution of the C ounoll at the: tlme the o

Vthe foliowmg events: 1. The death of the owner when

hardsi,p will be conducted every ’three to five years.

13



SECTION VI.
METHODS OF ASSESSMENT

GENERAL POLICY STATEMENT

The City of Lake Eimo has adopted the following three methods for assessment of public
improvements: fixed cost unit, adjusted front footage,.and by area method. For any
particular project one of these methods will more ;adequately reflect the true benefits

received in the assessment area than the o ods. The City Engineer, in his

Feasibility Study to the Council, will recormn mbination of these methods

for each project, based upon past pract é’ééénd the method that would best reflect the

benefit received for the area to be as sessed. The City Counci awill select the preferred

method of catculating the assessments ét""f‘ e-time the:project is ord : red.

The general rule is to assess ots using the “unit” assessment basis,

however, where platted resldentlal ‘Iot" ‘de.not reﬂeci_\a general similar size and. shape,

consideration will be.given to an adjusted front: footagé"basus Commercial and industrial

1, Fixed ‘:GQSt "Uq{tf{fMethod of Assessment

When it hasbeen determined to assess by the "unit" method, all lots within the
benefited area shall be assessed equally for the improvements.

The "fixed cost per unit” shall be defined as a quotient of the "assessable cost"
divided by the total assessable lots or parcels benefiting from the improvement.
For the purpose of determining the "units" or "parcels”, all parcels, inciuding
governmental agencies, shall be included in such calculations.

14



When large lots can be subdivided into more than one lot, the number of
assessable lots attributed to that parcel will be determined from the number of
potential future lots that could be obtained using current subdivision regulations.

For multi-family, commercial, industrial and institutional properties, the number of
fixed units assigned to the property may be determined by an equivalent
“residential” factor representing the propertres use compared to a single family
residenttal home (e.g. SAC units, WAC units,

r.-:standard traffic generation units).

"Adjusted Front Footage" Method of Assessmen{r L

When it has been determined to_fassess by the "Adju'sfted Front Foatage” method,
the "cost per adjusted front fé’e"r" or assessment rate, ‘shall be defined as the
guotient of the "assessable cost" «divided by the total assessable frontage

benefiting from the:si

_r__provement The assessment for each parcel is then
obtained by multiplyingthe assessment rate_ftrmes the adjusted front footage for
each property. For the 'fpurpds:e‘r:if determirring the "assessable frontage”, all
proper‘rres mciudmg governmental agencres shali ‘have their frontages included
in such caiculatro | '

The aotuél ‘pihysical Eirrrensions df:a Jparcel abutting an improvement (i.e., street,

‘ {-fi-';sewer ‘water, etc,, hall* NOT: be construed as the frontage utilized to calculate

the assessment for a: partlcular pareei Rather, an "adjusted front footage" will be

determined. sin  the Adjustment Front Footage method, odd shaped lots are

"“”':_____Justed to an average footage that wouid be the equivalent to the frontage of a

rectangular shapeq lot of the same area and depth. The purpose of this method
is to eiqu_a_t_liz_e assessment calculations for lots of similar size.

"Area” Method of Assessment

When it has been determined to assess by the "area" method, the area shall be
defined as the number of square feet or acres within the boundaries of the
appropriate property lines of the areas benefiting from the project. The
assessment rate (i.e. cost per square foot) shall be calculated by dividing the
total assessable cost by the total assessable area. The assessment for each
parcel is then obtained by multiplying the assessment rate times the benefitting
area of the parcel. On large lots, the City Engineer may determine that only a

15



portion of the lot receives the benefit and may select a lot depth for the
calculations equal to the benefit received.

For the purposes of defining assessable areas, all properties included in the
benefited area, including other governmental areas, churches, etc. shall be
included in the assessable areas. The following items may not be included in
area calculations: public right-of-ways, natural waterways, swamps and lakes or

other wetlands designated by the M/DNR. T
recommendation on the benefited area in'the Feasibility Report.

e City Engineer will make the

16



St

SECTION VIL
POLICIES OF REASSESSMENT

The City of Lake Elmo, in consfructing or reconstructing any public improvement, shall design
such improvement to last for a defined period. The life expectancy or service life shall be as
stated in the policy statement of this section, or if different, shall be as stated in the Resolution
ordering the improvement and preparation of plans. When-*:éﬂch project needs renswing or
replacement prematurely, the amount to be assessed. agamst the property owner shall be

limited to an amount determined by dividing the actual__ iife of the original improvement by the
expected service life of the original |mprovement‘

A POLICY STATEMENT

The follbwing are hereby established as the“il
public improvements unless"_::fﬁ?éwqi_se stated

pectancies” or “service lives" of
' “the Resolution ordering improvement
and preparation of plans, in whié}n’._.das‘é,ghqIife set forth.in the Resolution shall govern,

1. Sidewalks and Trails - 15 years

N o, TA W N

Mech_agmcai and _Efectrzcal Systems, Pumps and Controls - 15 years

17



SECTION VIl
DETERMINATION OF ASSESSABLE COSTS

STREET IMPROVEMENTS

Sireet Improvement assessments, including paving, curb & gutter, and related street
drainage systems are levied over a 10-year period. Low Density residential properties
will be assessed if the property has direct access’h'o the improvement. High Density

Residential, Commercial, and Industrial Properties:will‘be assessed if the property abuts

the improvement.

1. New Sireet Improvement Con tion and Paving

All new street improvements wil ssessedjoo% to the .__eneflted properhes

*-which are i{nc sired in e:écess of the above may be paid by: (1) State Aid Funds,
' 5(2) larger assesgment ratés to properties, (3) general obligation funds, or (4) any

oth‘

ethod or combmatton of methods authorized by the City Council

3. Coﬂector 'é#j@{~;§ﬂ-rterfai Street Improvements

Collector and arterial street improvements shall be assessed to a broader

property benefitting area with the area to be determined by the City and
approved by the City Council.

Residential properties located along collector and arterial streets will be
assessed 1o the equivalent local City standard street cost. All sireet-oversizing
costs associated with collector sireets will not be assessed to resideniial

properties.

18

N




4. Street Reconstruction Improvements

All residential street reconstructions shall be 30% assessed to be benefitting
properties and will normally be assessed by the unit method. Street
reconstruction improvements in Commercial, Business District, Institutional and
Industrial areas shall be assessed 100% of the total project costs or determined
on a project-by-project basis.

5. Street Maintenance Overlays and Seal Coaﬁngf '

Bituminous overlay projects, bltummous seal c@ats patching, crack sealing, fog
sealing, and filling potholes will not be assessed when completed as part of the
street system’s “life cycle” mamtenance activities.

SIDEWALKS, TRAILS, AND BIKEWAYS

Assessments for sidewalk, traﬂs--a' ‘_lblkeway mprovements are levied over a 10-year

perlod The City may install s;de' alks ir :IiS or blkeway wnprovements in accordance

~ New Constru :on

‘ :quew sndewalks tralis and blkeway improvements will be 100% assessed to the
benef.ittmg propertges based upon the adjusted front footage.

2. Reconstruction -

Replacement sidewalks, trails and bikeway improvements will be assessed 30%
to the abutting residentfal properties and assessed 100% to the abutting
commercial, industrial, and institutional properties.

19



STREET BOULEVARD TREES

All street boulevard trees installed as part of new street construction or in reconstructing
existing streets shall be included as part of the overall project costs and inciuded in the
assessment calculations.

STREET LIGHT IMPROVEMENTS

All costs for new sireet lights installed as part of cdrigtfﬁsting new streets or street lights
relocated as part of reconstructing streets will be ¢ uded in the overall project costs and

included in the assessment calculations -.Street lights may be included as part of the
improvement project if sixty percent (6

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

ficand. transportation related improvements, such as

All cosis associated with

widening of a roadway for turn nes : addltlonal di Aang lanes, on-street parking, traffic

calmlng, and trafflc sxgna[tzatlon may be assessed 100% to the benefiting properties in

'ﬂias part of street: Lprovement prolects and assessed as part of the project and levied

over. a 10-year perlsd Storm'st wer and drainage facility improvements completed as

mdependent projects W||l norma y""*be assessed by the area method taking into account
each parcels land use and rate of runoff as determined by the City Engineer.

1. New Storm :;ngsWer and Drainage Facility Improvements

New storm sewer and drainage facility improvements installed in conjunction with
new sireet construction where no storm sewer previously existed will be
assessed 100% and be included in the street assessment to benefiting
properties. If the facililies are oversized fo accommodate drainage from areas
outside the street improvement assessment area, the additional costs may be
assessed to the properties in the contributing area. Their assessment will be
determined by the area method based on the contributing area of the parcel(s)
taking into account the land use and rate of runoff.

20



2. Replacement and Major Maintenance of Storm Sewer improvements

Any replacement costs or reconstruction of existing storm sewers and drainage
facilities in conjunction with street reconstruction projects will be assessed 30%
and be included in the street assessment to benefiting properties. If the facilities
are oversized fo accommodate drainage from areas ouiside the sireet
improvement assessment area, the additional costs may be assessed to the
properties in the contributing area. Their assessment will be determined by the

area method based on the contnbutmg area ‘gf_the parcel(s) taking into account

the land use and rate of runoff.
SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS . ff;l;.- .

Assessments for sanitary sewer impro{}ements s=hall be baee’dm.: pon the cost of
construction of 8-inch sewet-mains. Oversizing-co

appurtenances and/or extra depths requwed to sewvice future development, and major
trunk sewers or :nterceptors will: not be* assessed and: WIH be “City costs” funded out of

-a;@ibefore it's expected use‘ful life, shall be funded through the Utility Reserve Fund in
prep__e_rtlon to the remafnlng deegg_n life of the street.

1. Interceptor Sewer:System |
The Metropolitan:Council Environmental Services (MCES) is responsible for the

construction ‘of #the interceptor sewer system and for the wastewater treatment
facility to freat the sewage generated in the City of Lake Eimo.

A Sewer Availability Charge (SAC) is determined by the MCES for each unit
connected to the sanitary sewer system. The current charge per residential
equivalent unit (REC) is collected, in full, by the City at the time of connection or
the issuance of the building permit. The City collects this charge and passes this
fee on to MCES.

21



Trunk Sanitary Sewer System

The Trunk Sanitary Sewer System is constructed to serve the entire community
or a larger service area and therefore is deemed ic be of community-wide
benefit. Trunk sanitary sewers, lift stations, and other trunk sewer sysiem
facilities shall be financed by a core facility charge to be paid at the time of
connection to the City system.

Core facility charges on units existing at th : me of construction may be paid in

not more than 15 annual installments

ip :ﬁ-}ip,ai plus interest on the unpaid

principal balance at the rate of eigk ;;iiercent.per'ah_ﬁw_m or at a rate otherwise set

by the City Council. Core facility charges on uﬁfitis-_::built after the sewer

construciion should be paid in full:at.the fime the building permlt is issued.

Lateral Sanitary Sewe S_ystem

:0 lateral sewer, is levied a lateral benefit

-.t.;i""'ht of-way wi.lzl-.;:.r:_l_ot be és’éessed, but rather financed from the Utility Reserve

Fu'h:d:'}:\prlother funding sources identified by the City Council. Each property shall

pay for the rep‘i'acement of the service line on their private property, from the

right-of—waiyi;.té the building/home.

22

S



WATERMAIN IMPROVEMENTS

Assessments for new water main improvements shall be based upon the cost of
construction of 8-inch water mains. Oversizing costs due to larger mains and larger
appurtenances will not be assessed and will be “City costs” funded out of the Utility
Reserve Fund. Normally, water mains will be assessed using the per lot method. Water
system assessments are levied over a 20-year period. :

Street improverments and major street mamtenance that is comp[eted as part of utility
replacement projects and has effectively accelerated the replacement of the street
before it's expected useful life, shall be: tunded through the Utlllty Reserve Fund in
proportion to the remaining design In‘ee he street. T

1. Trunk Water Mains, Supply, Storage and Treatment Facrirtles

The Trunk Water System Fac;lltles constructed to serve the entire

community or a larger service area and therefore deemed to be of community-
wide beneflt Trunk water mams pump statlons wells, storage tanks, and
treatment faclhtles shall be tmanced by a core facmty charge to be paid ai the
time of cennectlon te the City system

= Core. facility -charges‘oh 't‘mits exist‘ing at the time of construction may be paid in

' --not more:: than 15 annual mstallments of principal plus interest on the unpaid

B - principal balance at the rate of elght percent per annum or at a rate otherwise set
:"‘i'.f-ﬁ}:by the Clty Council. Core;{facmty charges on units buitt after the water main

2 Latera! Water ,M_a’ifns

The costs fcir:filateral water mains shall be fully assessed (100%) to the benefiting
properties. Commercial, industrial and multiple land uses, and undeveloped
lands are converted inio residential units for assessment purposes. Any building
unit which is served directly by a trunk water main and therefore requires no
lateral water main, is levied a lateral benefit assessment which is equal to the
Watermain Lateral Benefit Charge as set in the latest adopted City Fee
Schedule.

23



The replacement of existing water mains and service lines within the right-of-way
will not be assessed, but rather financed from the Utility Reserve Fund or other
funding sources identified by the City Council. Each property shall pay for the
replacement of the service line on their private property, from the right-of-way to

the building/home.

24

v



CITY OF LAKE ELMO
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT POLICIES
AND PROCEDURES
FOR

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

Adopted by Resolution No. on: November XX, 2010



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION I: GENERAL POLICY STATEMENT ...t i e e s sne s 3
SECTION II: DEFINITION OF IMPROVEMENTS ELIGIBLE FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENT .. 5
SECTION lil:  INITIATION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS....cccooirereeresere e 7
SECTION 1IV: PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROCEDURES.... e s 8

SECTION V: GENERAL ASSESSMENT POLICIES ....ii i e ersveesesssssessesessessessmssorssesnes 10
SECTION VI:* METHODS OF ASSESSMENT ..o e ceeesseeesslitibis s eessessesseesseseeseoscssreeseeenes 14
SECTION VII: POLICIES OF REASSESSMENT ...t ste et e 17
SECTION VIil: DETERMINATION OF ASSESSA SI3.. N S 18



SECTION L.
GENERAL POLICY STATEMENT

A special assessment is a levy on a property to defray the cost of public improvements. Chapter
429 of the Minnesota Statutes grants cities the authority to use special assessments as a
mechanism to finance a broad range of public improvements. The primary purpose of special
assessments is to have the properties that benefit from the pub|IC improvements pay as much of
the cost of the improvements as reasonable, thereby reducmg a city's reliance on general
property taxes. However, Chapter 429 of the Mlnneseta Statutes limits the amount that may be
assessed to the increase in the market value of

e.property bemg assessed as a result of the
public improvement. :

The purpose of this Special Assessment Policy ‘is 4o estab.liish a fair an urtable marner of

recoveting and distributing the costiof:pu "he procedures used by the City of
aassess ents are those specified by Minnesota Statutes §

Chapter 429, which provrdes that "all of: a par‘t-:. the cost of improvements may be assessed .

Lake Elmo ("City") for levying speclal‘

C. The assessment must be unrtorm in relation to the same class of property within the

assessment area

It is important to recognize that the actual cost of extending an improvement past a particular
parcel is not the determining factor in determining the amount o be assessed. However, in most
cases the method for determining the value of the benefit received by the improvement, and
therefore the amount to be assessed, shall be the cost of providing the improvement, as ong as
the cost does not exceed the increase in the market value of the property being assessed. The
entire project shall be considered as a whole for the purpose of calculating and computing an

assessment rate. In the event City staff has doubt as to whether or not the costs of the project



may exceed the special benefits to the property, the City Council may obtain such appraisals as
may be necessary to support the proposed assessment.

The City must recover the expense of installing public improvements undertaken, whﬂe ensuring
that each parcel pays its fair share of the project cost in accordance with these assessment
guidelines.' White there is no perfect assessment policy, it is important that assessments be
implemenied in a reasonable, consistent and fair manner. There may be exceptions to the

policy or unique circumstances or situations that may:irequire special consideration and

discretion by City staff and the City Council.



SECTION IL
DEFINITION OF IMPROVEMENTS ELIGIBLE
FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENT

This policy shall be applicable to those types of . public improvements that are aliowable under
Minnesota Statutes §429.021. Generally the improvements include:

A.

Street and sidewalk improvements: Acquisition; construction, reconstruction,
extension and major maintenance of any street ant?:i *s"idewalk and improvement of streets

and sidewalks including base and subbase paveme t___ gutters, curbs, and vehicle

parking strips, paver cross walks, _. edestrlan crossings, medians, beautification
amenities, and street and sidewalk drainag

lnstrubtlon reconstruction, exlension, and

'mamtenance of ww or suppl :wells and pump houses, water treatment facilities, storage

tanks-__, and all components of the ‘watermain distribution system network and related

appurtenances

Sanitary sewer systems Acquisition, development, construction, reconstruction,
extension, and matntanance of sanitary sewer conveyance and treatment systems. This
may include sanitary sewers, interceptor mains, lift stations, treatment facilities and
treatment systems, service connections, and other appurtenances of a sanitary sewer
system.

Storm sewer and drainage systems. Acquisition, development, construction,
reconstruction, extension, and maintenance of storm water management facilities and
storm sewer systems. This may include outlets, culverts, pipe systems, catch basins,



holding areas and ponds, infiltration basins, rain gardens, treatment plants, pumps, lift
stations, service connections, and other appurtenances of a storm sewer system.

Nuisance abatement. includes, but is not limited to, draining and filing swamps,
marshes, and ponds on pubiic or private property.

Dikes and other flood control works. Construction, reconstruction, extension, and

maintenance.

Retaining and area walls, including
construction, reconstruction, improvement

Malis, plazas, or courtyards. Acgiisition, construction,
extension, operation, maintenance, and. n

couriyards.

Parking lots. Acquisition or constructio



R

SECTIONIIL.
INITIATION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

Public improvement projects may be initiated in the following ways:

A,

A public improvement project may be initiated by petition of at least 35% of the affected
property owners.

Councii when, in its judgment, such

Public improvements may be initiated by the

action is required. A resolution erdering any nail ‘initiated improvements requires a

4/5th vote, rather than a simple majority




SECTION IV.
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PROCEDURES

The following is the general procedure that will be followed by the City Council for all public
improvement projects from initiation of such a project through cettification of the assessment
role to the County Auditor. The City Council reserves the right to alter the procedure on a case-
by-case basis and within the context of Minnesota Statues § G’!ﬁi-a'pter 429.

Improvements of different kinds anywhere in the City included in a proceeding and

conducted as one or more mprovements Thus a smgie procee may encompass sidewalk,

A.

B.

C.

D.

E. Staff publishes a hearinginotice and mails notices fo the affected property owners.,

E. Council condu'cts-;rimpr;é ment hearing and adopts or rejects a resolution ordering the
improvement and'ft'hg;;preparation of plans and specifications. Bonds 1o finance project
costs may be issued at any time after the improvements are ordered.

G. Staft prepares final plans for Council approval. Council approves the plans and

authorizes the advertisement of the improvements and the opening of Bids.

S



K.

Staff receives bids, prepares a bid tabulation, and makes a recommendation to the City

Council for Award. Councii rejects the bids or awards a contract based on the bids

received.

Performance of the work under contract is completed. Staff supervises construction,
prepares payments, and completes the improvement project.

Staff prepares an assessment roll and presents it to the:Council.

Councit reviews the assessment schedule and,;:__t;éwtélers ‘an:assessment hearing.

Staff publishes a hearing notice, mails he ‘notice of heat g date and the proposed
assessments to the affected property ow érs.

Council conducts assessment. hearlng, adopts revise , or rejects the resnlutlon adopting

the assessment roll. If adopted Gouncil authonze certtflcatlon of the assessment to the

County Audiior.

Staff certifies the a s.eé’sments to thi County

Note: At'Co ncil's discretion, Item G:may be carried out in advance of the
improvementh aring

*Note- -Atl-G@uncn s dlscretlon Items .J-N may be carried out in advance to Council
3 award and censtructlng‘the |mprovements




SECTION V.
GENERAL ASSESSMENT POLICIES

The cost of any improvement shall be assessed upon property benefited by the improvements,

based upon the benefits received. The following general principies shall be used as a basis of

the City's assessment policy:

A,

it is the general policy of the City of Lake Elme:lé require future development in

ndfor.new areas of development in an

accordance with the City Comprehensive Pla

orderty manner, typically contiguous to existi areas. it is also the general

policy of the City of Lake Elmo to re : ell new develo nt areas fo provide for

adequate public infrastructure at the loper's sole expense :

d in accordance with

' f;'.alks water, sewer, and street

1 "Iudes the costs of all necessary construction

rovement plus englneermg, legal, administrative,

N _:__i'll_mlted to, financial consultant's fees, bond attorney's

fees, and ‘capitalized in rest. When the project is started and funds are expended prior
1o receiving’ the proceeds “from a bond sale, the project may be charged interest on the
funds expended from the date of expenditure to the date the bond proceeds are
received. The interééf:'rate charged will be the average interest rate earned by the City's
investments during the six months preceding the receipt of the bond proceeds. The

interest charged to the project shall be included as financing charges.

The "assessable cost" of an improvement is equal to the "project cost" minus the "City

cost".

The City of Lake Elmo will charge interest on Special Assessments at a rate specified in
the resolution. If bonds were sold to finance the improvement project, the interest rate

10



[

shall be two percent (2%) more than the average interest rate of the bonds, rounded to
the nearest quarter of a percent. if no bonds were sold, the interest rate shall be set at
the rate allowed by State faw.

Property owners may pay their assessments in full, interest free for a period of 30 days
after the assessment hearing. After such period interest shall be computed from the date
specified in the assessment resolution. The City will certify each year's coliection
(principal and interest) to the County Auditor by ‘-‘Névémber 30th. Prior to the first

certification of principal and interest to the Coun i udltor a property owner may make a

partial pre-payment of the principal o th
must be at least $100.00. If the partial
free" period allowed by State law, int

‘ty--“of Lake Elmo. Such partial prepayment

repayment is macle._= ter the 30-day "interest-

st will be charged on thesamount of the partial

pre-payment from the date specified in the sresolution.and paid ng. with the partial

pre-payment. After the City has'made the first-c :glflcation of principal and interest to the
County Auditor, pre-payment be accepted only for the total amount still owing

including interest. If a parcel™>

'wl be paid in equalinstallments over the remamlng term of the special assessments.

Where an improvemen‘t"'is designed for service of an area beyond that of direct benefit,
increased: project costs due to such provisions for future service extensions may be paid
for by the Cl

improvement is mstalled as an exiension of the existing improvement. As an alternative,

i The: Clty will levy assessments to cover this cost when a new

the City may assess these costs io the area of future benefit immediately.

Where the project cost of an improvement is not entirely attributabie to the need for
service 1o the area served by said improvement, or where unusual conditions beybnd the
control of the owners of the property in the area served by the improvement would result
in an nequitable distribution of special assessments, the City, through the use of other
funds, may pay such "City cost" which, in the opinion of the City Council, represents the
excess cost not directly attributable to the area served.

11



If financial assistance is received by the City from the Federal Government, from the
State of Minnesota, the County, or from any other source to defray a portion of the costs
of a given improvement, such aid will be used first to reduce the "City cost" of the
improvement. If the financial assistance received is greater than the normal "City cost",
the remainder of the aid will be applied according to the terms of the assistance program
or at the Council’s discretion.

City-owned properties, including municipal building,.:.si'fés, barks and playgrounds, but not

including public sireets and alleys, shall be rs.ggg"r'.é{e being assessable on the same

basis as if such property was privately-owne

Improvements specifically designed f shown to be of directibenefit to one or more

properiies may be constructed by thebl The costs for these i

assessed directly to such luded in the assessments for the

roperties, and “nef i

remainder of the project. Ansexample of this be utility service lines running from

the main lines io the property.

Benefit Appra:sa An=the event that Clty taff'has dotitst as io whether or not the

proposed assessments
(:ncreased propet

Assessmérj"‘Deferral Precedure for Green Acres Parcels: In cases where improvementi

projects are-:'de." rmined fo.benefit properties that have been certified to qualify for Green

Acres exemptio'h',--._gtﬁs:_.;¢.City will determine that portion of the project cost that benefits
those properties, ana finance that portion of the project cost as a system cost. During
the period of deferral, interest shall be applied annually to the unpaid principle balance at
the raie established on the original special assessment, or as adopted by resolution of
the City Council at the time the original assessment is adopted. Once the benefiting
properties no longer qualify for Green Acres status, the City may recover the system

cost either through assessments or connection charges.

12



[N

Assessment Deferral for Hardships: The City Council will consider deferment for the
payment of special assessments on any homestead property, owned by a person 65
years of age or older, or retired by virtue of permanent and iotal disability. A hardship
shall be deemed to exist when the annual principle installment of all assessments levied
against the property exceeds two percent (2%) of the adjusted gross income of the
applicant as evidenced by the applicant’s most recent federal income tax return, and

total assets (excluding the homestead property) do .not exceed six times the adjusted
gross income. ' '

The City Council may also determine, 'a.:':CéSe byﬁéase basis, the existence of a

hardship on the basis of exceptional nusual cu‘cumstan es not covered by these

standards and guidelines, if done in n- discriminatory man er’.:and without giving the

applicant an unreasonable preference or advantage- .ove:r other prope.rt_y.,owners.

During the period of deferral ~interest shall be ap _-j‘ie_:d annually to the unpaid principle

balance at the rate established+on the soriginal spéc}'iﬁ__lf_assessrnent, or as adopted by

resolution of the Git\y--;Gounci! at th'-'é:.;;time the o inal as's"'é:éément is adopted.

The deferment : shall termlnate and a![ prngiple and lnteTest becomes due and payabie

upon the occurrence of an the followmg events: 1. The death of the owner when

there S0 Sellglbie for deferment 2. The sale, transfer or subdivision of

! .:property ar: any pa ~thereof, 3. Theiproperty should lose its homestead status, 4.

VT.. 3 Clty Council shau!d determine that the hardship no longer exists. A review of the

hardsh|p will be conduc:ted every’ihree to five years.

13



SECTION VL.
METHODS OF ASSESSMENT

GENERAL POLICY STATEMENT

The City of Lake Eimo has adopted the following three methods for assessment of public
improvements: fixed cost unit, adjusted front footage, .and by area method. For any
particular project one of these methods will mor@ﬁ_-.»;af(‘iiaqUately reflect the true benefits
received in the assessment area than the 0 ods. The City Engineer, in his

f é-s“sés;_s_ment, as described and defined below, are hereby
ér_nethodé?bf assessment in the City of Lake Elmo:

1. Fixed: Cosz‘ U :r" Method of Assessment
When it has __een determined to assess by the "unit” method, all lots within the

benefited area shall be assessed equally for the improvements.

The "fixed cost per unit" shall be defined as a quotient of the "assessable cost"
divided by the total assessable lots or parcels benefiting from the improvement.
For the purpose of determining the "units" or "parcels”, all parcels, including
governmental agencies, shall be inciuded in such calculations.

14



When large lots can be subdivided into more than one lot, the number of
assessable lots attributed to that parcel will be determined from the number of
potential future lots that could be obtained using current subdivision regulations.

For multi-family, commercial, industrial and institutional properties, the number of
fixed units assigned to the property may be determined by an equivaient
“residential” factor representing the properties .use compared to a single family
residential home (e.g. SAC units, WAC units,.f:o:r';:standard traffic generation units).

"Adjusted Front Footege " Method of Assessment

When it has been determined to assess by the "Adjusted Front Footage" method,

or assessment rate ehal[ be defined as the

the "cost per adjusted front foo

in such calculatlon

_ The actual phys:cal dlmensmns of «a parcel abutting an improvement (i.e., street,
1= etc)-shall NlT be construed as the frontage utilized to calculate
the assessment for. a particular parsel Rather, an "adjusted front footage” will be

. determined.” In the Adjustment Front Footage method, odd shaped iots are

"i;eqj_usted to an ay_ge__rage foatage that would be the equivalent to the frontage of a
réctanguiar shap_'e_c_‘_t_'- lot of the same area and depth. The purpose of this method
is to equalize assessment calculations for lots of similar size.

"Area” Method of Assessment

When it has been determined fo assess by the "area" method, the area shall be
defined as the number of square feet or acres within the boundaries of the
appropriate property lines of the areas benefiting from the project. The
assessment rate (i.e. cost per square foot) shall be calculated by dividing the
lotal assessable cost by the total assessable area. The assessment for each
parcel is then obtained by multiplying the assessment rate times the benefitting
area of the parcel. On large lots, the City Engineer may determine that only a

15



portion of the lot receives the benefit and may select a lot depth for the
- calculations equal to the benefit received.

For the purposes of defining assessable areas, all properties inciuded in the
benefited area, including other governmental areas, churches, etc. shall be
included in the assessable areas. The following items may not be included in
area calculations: public right-of-ways, natural waterways, swamps and lakes or
other wetlands designated by the Mn/DNR:: e City Engineer will make the

recommendation on the benefited area i Feasibility Report.

16



SECTION VII.
POLICIES OF REASSESSMENT

The City of Lake Elmo, in constructing or reconstructing any public improvement, shall design
such improvement to last for a defined period. The life expectancy or service life shall be as
stated in the policy statement of this section, or if different, shall be as stated in the Resolution
ordering the improvement and preparation of plans. When such project needs renewing or
replacement prematurely, the amount o be assessed agamst the property owner shall be

expected service life of the original |mprovement

A. POLICY STATEMENT

The tollowmg are hereby established as the "lite’ ' ipectancies" of “service lives" of

public improvements unless'%

srwise stated |

e Resolution ordering improvement
and preparation of plans, in whié'h ca . i

1. Sidewalks dTTra:ls 15 years

Streetim rovements /nciudmg surfacmg and c:urb and gutter - 20 years

Street Lfghtmg 2 'ea s .

Sanitary Sew' rs and Appurtenances 40 years

Storm Sewers and Appun‘enances 40 years

NO® GlA woN

Mechamcal and Electnca! Systerns, Pumps and Controls - 15 years

17



SECTION ViIii.
DETERMINATION OF ASSESSABLE COSTS

STREET IMPROVEMENTS

Street improvement assessments, including paving, curb & gutter, and related street
drainage systems are levied over a 10-year period. Low Density residential properties

wilt be assessed if the property has direct access’to the improvement. High Density

Residential, Commercial, and Industrial Propertiess e assessed if the property abuts

the improvement.

. New Street Improvement Cons uction and Paving

All new street improvements will be assessed 100% to thé:benefited properties

other method or combmatton of methods authorized by the City Council

3. Coﬂector and n‘enal Street Improvements

Collector and arterial street improvements shall be assessed to a broader
property benefitling area with the area to be determined by the City and
approved by the City Council.

Residential properties located along collector and arierial sireets will be
assessed to the equivalent local City standard street cost. All street-oversizing
costs associated with collector streets will not be assessed fo residential

properties.

18

o



4. Street Reconstruction Improvements

All residential street reconstructions shall be 30% assessed to be benefitting
properties and will normally be assessed by the unit method. Street
reconstruction improvements in Commercial, Business District, Institutional and
Industrial areas shall be assessed 100% of the total project costs or determined
on a project-by-project basis.

5. Street Maintenance Overlays and Seal Coating

Bituminous overlay projects, bitumlno":"’_fseal csats patching, crack sealing, fog

sealing, and filling potholes will not be assessed when completed as part of the

street system's “life cycle” malnt" ancs activities.

SIDEWALKS, TRAILS, AND BIKEWAvs .

Assessments for sidewalk, trat[s-anxsl -bikeway im ements are levied over a 10-year

period. The City may install S|dswalks ; alis or blkeway improvements in accordance
with the City Compi&

which case th

mty, ot for council directed purposes, in

‘not assess the

vemenf;s__. At council discretion, sidewalk,

trail and bikewa .-.,imprové:rﬁents maSI"'b"e'fuIty or paFt’iaIIy funded as part of a street

1 2 New Consfr'&b‘ﬁon

| miNew S|dewalks tralls and blkeway improvements will be 100% assessed to the
beneﬂttmg propertles based upon the adjusted front footage.
2. Heconstrdbﬁqm v

Replacement sidewalks, trails and bikeway improvements will be assessed 30%
to the abutting residential properties and assessed 100% to the abutting
commercial, industrial, and institutional properties.

19



STREET BOULEVARD TREES

All street boulevard trees installed as part of new street construction or in reconstructing
existing streets shall be included as part of the overall project costs and included in the

ass'essment calculations.
STREET LIGHT IMPROVEMENTS

All costs for new street lights installed as part of com: :_ructing new streets or street lights

relocated as part of reconsiructing streets will be:ir

in the overall project costs and

each parce'is‘zland use an' ate of runoff as determmed by the City Engineer.

1. New Storm ,Sewer and Drainage Facility Improvements

New storm sewer and drainage facility improvements installed in conjunction with
new street construction where no storm sewer previously existed will be
assessed 100% and be included in the street assessment to benefiting
properties. If the facilities are oversized to accommodate drainage from areas
outside the street improvement assessment area, the additional cosis may be
assessed to the properiies in the contributing area. Their assessment will be
determined by the area method based on the contributing area of the parcel(s)

taking into account the land use and rate of runoff.

20



2 Replacement and Major Maintenance of Storm Sewer Improvements

Any replacement costs or reconstruction of existing storm sewers and drainage
facilities in conjunction with street reconstruction projects will be assessed 30%
and be included in the street assessment to benefiting properties. If the facilities
are oversized to accommodate drainage from areas outside the street
improvement assessment area, the additional costs may be assessed to the
properties in the confributing area. Their asseeement will be determined by the
area method based on the contnbutmg area of the parcel(s) taking into account

the land use and rate of runoff.
SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENT&-:T{:

Assessments for sanitary sewer impfg'v-,ements sti-all_ be base"é-i;upon the cost of
construction of 8-inch sewer ‘mains. Oversizing-costs dus to Iargerl“rﬁains and larger
appurtenances and/or exira debfhfe--zzz_regyired o eef.:\___z;_ice future development, and major
trunk sewers or interceptors wi‘ll'-*hot be %esessed an’d'-will be “City costs” funded out of
the Utility Res
method. Sanit;

'__e‘rs will: be assessed using the per lot

f‘Fund Normally, Samtaf,yh‘j

:tei-are Iewed over a 20-year period.

Street wnprovements and .major street malntenance that are completed as part of uiility
: MEr ; nt:l' has’ effeetlvely accelerated the reptacement of the sireet
i%.-before it's expected useful Ilfe shall ‘be“funded through the Utility Reserve Fund in

1. I-nteroeptor Se Wer;'-:';System |

The Me_’gmpoliten%@ounoil Environmental Services (MCES) is responsible for the
construction, 'ci:f-:ithe interceptor sewer system and for the wastewater treatment
facility to treat the sewage generated in the City of Lake Elmo.

A Sewer Availability Charge (SAC) is determined by the MCES for each unit
connected fo the sanitary sewer system. The current charge per residential
equivalent unit (REC) is collected, in full, by the City at the time of connaction or
the issuance of the building permit. The City collects this charge and passes this
fee on to MCES.

21



2. Trunk Sanitary Sewer System

The Trunk Sanitary Sewer System is constructed to serve the entire commuhity
or a larger service area and therefore is deemed to be of community-wide
benefit. Trunk sanitary sewers, lift stations, and other trunk sewer system
facilities shall be financed by a core facility charge to be paid at the time of
connection to the Gity system.

Core facility charges on units existing at th | 'rﬁe of construction may be paid in

not more than 15 annual installments ,—pfiﬂ"éip’gl plus interest on the unpaid

principal balance at the rate of eight percent per anfsm or at a rate otherwise set

by the City Council. Core lfacmty charges onh u _s bunt after the sewer

‘ 10 lateral sewer, is levied a lateral benefit
‘:;assessment Whi h s eq _aI to the-Sewer Lateral Benefit Charge as set in the

‘ Iatest'adapted Clty.zFee Schedule

The replacement of existjg_g sanitary sewer mains and service lines within the

er_lght-of-way will :not be assessed, but rather financed from the Utility Reserve
Fund:or other funding sources identified by the City Council. Each property shall

pay fé'r‘?t:ﬁe replacement of the service line on their private properiy, from the

right-of-way-to-the building/home.

22



WATERMAIN IMPROVEMENTS

Assessments for new water main improvements shall be based upon the cost of
construction of 8-inch water mains. Oversizing costs due to larger mains and larger
appurtenances will not be assessed and will be “City costs” funded out of the Ultility
Reserve Fund. Normally, water mains will be assessed using the per lot method. Water
sysiem assessments are levied over a 20-year period. .-

Street improvements and major street malntenan ¢ __hat is completed as part of utility
replacement projects and has effectively acceierated the replacement of the street
before it's expected useful life, shall be funded through the Utlllty Reserve Fund in

proportion fo the remaining design life

1. Trunk Water Mains, Supp!y, Storage,vand Treatmem‘ Facrlrtresr: 71:;_-__,

The Trunk Water System FaCllItleS are construc:ted to serve the entire
community or a larger eervrce areaand therefore deemed to be of community-

wide benefrt Trunk water ‘mains, “pi

mp. statlons, wells, storage tanks, and

treatment-%facilitres shall be fmanc diby a: core facmty charge to be paid at the

time of connectlon to the Gity system.'

LCore. facmty cha ( es ﬂon units exrstrng at the time of construction may be paid in

_'jf; annual mstallments of principal plus interest on the unpaid

| ::'”'not more: than

.. principal balance at the rate of eig ht percent per annum or at a rate otherwise set

i by the City Ceuncrl Core “facility charges on units built after the water main
censtructron should be paid in full at the time the building permit is issued.

2, Lateral fWater Mains

The costs for:.I'aferaf water mains shall be fully assessed (100%) to the benefiting
properties. Commercial, industrial and multiple land uses, and undeveloped
lands are converted into residential units for assessment purposes. Any building
unit which is served directly by a trunk water main and therefore requires no
lateral water main, is levied a lateral benefit assessment which is equal to the
Watermain Lateral Benefit Charge as set in the latest adopted City Fee
Schedule.

23



The replacement of existing water mains and service lines within the right-of-way
will not be assessed, but rather financed from the Utility Reserve Fund or other
funding sources identified by the City Council. Each property shall pay for the
replacement of the service line on their private property, from the right-of-way to

the building/home.

24



